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October 1, 2012

David W. Danner

Executive Director and Secretary

Washington Utilities and Transportation Commission
1300 S. Evergreen Park Dr. SW

PO Box 47250

Olympia, WA 98504-7250

Re:  No. 16— (215G

Stericycle of Washington, Inc.’s Complaint and Petition for Declaratory Relief

108 WY €- 1302102

Dear Mr. Danner:

‘Enclosed please find an original and 12 copies of the Complaint and Petition for Declaratory Relief.

Sincerely,
GARVEY SCHUBERT BARER
/) m
}// -
Jared Van Kirk
Enclosures

cc: Polly L. McNeill
Jessica Goldman
James K. Sells (courtesy copy via email)
Fronda Woods
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BEFORE THE WASHINGTON UTILITIES AND
TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION

STERICYCLE OF WASHINGTON, INC.,

DOCKET NO. _
Complainant,
COMPLAINT AND PETITION FOR
V. . DECLARATORY RELIEF
WASTE MANAGEMENT OF

WASHINGTON, INC., d/b/a WM Healthcare
Solutions of Washington,

Respondent.

1. THIS COMPLAINT AND PETITION FOR DECLARATORY RELIEF is
brought before the Washington Utilities and Transportation Commission (“Commission”) by
Stericycle of Washington, Inc. (“Stericycle” or “complainant”), by and through its attorneys
Garvey Schubert Barer, Stephen B. Johnson and Jared Van Kirk. In support of its Complaint
and Petition, Stericycle alleges as follows:

L PARTIES & REPRESENTATIVES

Complainant , Complainant’s Representative
Stericycle of Washington, Inc. (G-244) Stephen B. Johnson

20320 80th Avenue S. Jared Van Kirk

Kent, WA 98032 Garvey Schubert Barer

1191 Second Avenue, Suite 1800
Seattle, WA 98101
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Respondent Respondent’s Representative
Waste Management of Washington, Inc. (G- Jessica Goldman

237) Polly L. McNeill

d/b/a WM Healthcare Solutions of Washington Summit Law Group

720 4™ Ave. Ste 400 315 - 5™ Avenue South
Kirkland, WA 98033 Seattle, WA 98104

2. Complainant Stericycle is the holder of Certificate No. G-244, issued by the
Commission, which authorizes Stericycle to collect and transport biomedical waste for disposal
throughout the state of Washingtqn.

3. Respondent Waste Management of Washington, Inc., d/b/a WM Healthcare
Solutions of Washington (“WM?”), is the holder of Certificate No. G-237, which authorizes
WM to collect and transport biomedical waste in a limited area within the state of Washington.

IL. JURISDICTION

4, The Commission has jurisdiction to hear this Complaint and Petition pursuant to
RCW 81.04.110, RCW 81.77.030 and WAC 480-07-370. RCW 81.04.110 provides, in

pertinent part, as follows:

Complaint may be made by . . . any person or corporation . . . by petition or complaint
in writing, setting forth any act or thing done or omitted to be done by any public
service company or any person, persons, or entity acting as a public service company in
violation, or claimed to be in violation, of any provision of law or of any order or rule of
the commission.

5. This Complaint and Petition is brought pursuant to RCW 81.04.010, RCW
81.04.110, RCW 81.04.510, RCW 81.28.040, RCW 81.28.080, RCW 81.28.180, RCW
81.28.190, RCW 81.28.210, RCW 81.77.020, RCW 81.77.030, RCW 81.77.040, RCW
34.05.240, WAC 480-07-305, WAC 480-07-370, WAC 480-70-081, WAC 480-70-236 and

other applicable law.
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II. STATEMENT OF FACTS

FIRST CLAIM - UNLAWFUL REBATING

6. On information and belief, WM has solicited generators of biomedical waste by
offering them unlawful rebates as an inducement to contract with WM for biomedical waste
collection services.

7. On information and belief, in January 2012, WM solicited Public Hospital
District No. 1, d/b/a Skagit Valley Hospital (“Skagit Valley™), for its biomedical waste
collection business on the basis of an offer of an unlawful rebate. At that time, Stericycle was
collecting Skagit Valley’s biomedical waste. WM initially advised Skagit Valley that WM
could beat Stericycle’s tariff rates. Stericycle subsequently informed Skagit Valley that the
rates contained in WM’s published tariff are substantially the same as the rates in Stericycle’s
tariff, thereby debunking WM’s misleading representations. WM then countered by offering to
reduce its charges for recycling services to Skagit Valley as an inducement to obtain Skagit
Valley’s biomedical waste collection business. WM made the proposed discount on its
recycling services contingent on Skagit Valley’s agreement to contract with WM for
biomedical waste collection services. Shortly thereafter, Skagit Valley canceléd its biomedical
waste services agreement with Stericycle and entered into an agreement to receive biomedical
waste collection services from WM. A copy of an “Integrated Contract and Services
Agreement,” providing for a combination of recycling, solid waste, biomedical waste collection
and other services for an all-inclusive flat fee of $18,500/m0nth, is attached hereto as Exhibit
A.

8. On information and belief, in February 2012, WM solicited Northwest Hospital
& Medical Center in Seattle for its biomedical waste collection business on the basis of an offer
of an unlawful rebate. As in the case of Skagit Valley, Northwest Hospital was receiving
biomedical waste collection services from Stericycle at that time. During this time, Stericycle’s

contract with Northwest Hospital for biomedical waste collection services came up for renewal.
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Northwest Hospital informed Stericycle that WM had offered it a discount on recycling
services worth approximately $6,000 per year as an inducement to switch its biomedical waste
collection business to WM and that Northwest Hospital would therefore not be renewing its
contract with Stericycle. Northwest Hospital explained that cost savings from the recycling
discount was the sole reason for its decision to change biomedical waste service providers.
Copies of WM contracts with Northwest Hospital for recycling and biomedical waste collection
services, both dated February 15, 2012, are attached hereto as Exhibit B.

9. On information and belief, on or about May 11, 2012, WM offered to reduce its
fees for recycling services to Valley Medical Center if Valley Medical Center would agree to
switch its biomedical waste collection business to WM. A copy of an email from Jeff Norton,
Account Development Manager for Waste Management, dated May 11, 2012, describing this
offer is attached hereto as Exhibit C. In this email, Mr. Norton notes Waste Management’s
current charges to Valley Medical Center for recycling: “Your recycle is $155 haul fee and
$70/ton processing.” Mr. Norton then states the following: “If we can also service you for
medical waste (not your sharps service...the remainder of your medical waste) we can reduce
your recycling to $120 haul fee and $15/ton processing. This is similar to what we did for
Northwest Hospital.” .

10. On information and belief, WM has solicited the biomedical waste collection
business of other Washington generators through offers of similar unlawful rebates through
discounted recycling services.

11. WM’s unlawful rebating has adversely affected Stericycle’s business by
inducing Stericycle customers to switch their business to WM.

SECOND CLAIM - MISCLASSIFICATION (UNAUTHORIZED SERVICE
AND OFFERS OF SERVICE AT BELOW-TARIFF RATES)
12. WM has unlawfully provided and continues to provide biomedical waste

collection services outside the territory in which it is authorized to provide biomedical waste

COMPLAINT - 4 GARVEY SCHUBERT BARER

A PARTNERSHIP OF PROFESSIONAL CORPORATIONS
eighteenth floor
1191 second avenue
seattle, washington 98101-2939
206 464 3939

SEA_DOCS:1064449.9




VS B\

O 0 3 N W

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26

collection services under its certificate G-237. On or about August 4, 2011, WM entered into
an agreement to provide biomedical waste collection services to PeaceHealth St. Joseph
Medical Center in Bellingham, Washington, a facility located outside WM’s authorized service
territory under certificate G-237. A copy of that agreement is attached hereto as Exhibit D.
WM has provided and continues to provide biomedical waste collection services to St. Joseph
Medical Center under its so-called “ecoFinity” sharps waste program. WM has offered its
“ecoFinity” sharps waste services to other biomedical waste generators outside WM’s
authorized service territory. WM erroneously contends that its services to St. Joseph Medical
Center under the “ecoFinity” program constitute “commercial recycling collection services”
that are not subject to the requirements of RCW 81.77.040 and the Commission’s rules in
chapter 480-70 WAC. However, WM has acknowledged in response to Stericycle’s data
requests in Docket No. 120033 (In re Application of Waste Management of Washington, Inc.
d/b/a WM Heathcare Solutions of Washington) that the amount of plastics recycled from the St.
Joseph Medical Center sharps waste was only between 17% and 28% of the total amount of
such waste in recent months. An excerpt from WM’s responses to Stericycle’s data requests
providing this data is attached hereto as Exhibit E. WM’s collection and transportation of
biomedical sharps waste for treatment and disposal outside of its certificated territory violates
RCW 81.77.040 and other applicable law.

13. On information and belief, WM has solicited customers for its “ecoFinity”
sharps waste collection services within the territory it is authorized to serve under G-237 at
rates lower than or different from the applicable rates specified in the biomedical waste tariff
WM has filed with the Commission. WM erroneously contends that its services under the
“ecoFinity” program constitute “commercial recycling collection services” that are not subject
to the requirements of RCW 81.77.040 and the Commission’s rules in chapter 480-70 WAC,
including WAC 480-70-236. However, WM has acknowledged in response to Stericycle’s data

requests in Docket No. 120033 (In re Application of Waste Management of Washington, Inc.
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d/b/a WM Heathcare Solutions of Washington) that the amount of plastics recycled under its
“ecoFinity” sharps waste program was only between 17% and 28% of the total amount of such
waste in recent months. WM’s unlawful action in providing biomedical waste collection
services to St. Joseph Medical Center without a certificate of public convenience and necessity
authorizing such services and soliciting biomedical waste collection business from other
generators outside its authorized service territory has adversely affected Stericycle’s business
and threatens to adversely affect Stericycle’s business by inducing Stericycle customers to
switch their sharps waste collection business to WM.

14, WM'’s unlawful action in soliciting biomedical waste generators within the
territory covered by G-237 at rates less than or different from the rates contained in the tariff it
has filed with the Commission threatens to adversely affect Stericycle’s business by inducing
Stericycle customers to switch their sharps waste collection business to WM.

IV. APPLICABLE LAW

15. Solid waste collection companies are subject to general Washington statutes
applicable to common carriers.! These statutes require common carriers subject to rate
regulation to publish their rates in tariffs filed with and approved by the Commission.’
Washington law specifically requires solid waste collection companies to file their tariffs for
approval by the Commission and prohibits them from “assess[ing] rates and charges that are
higher, lower, or different from those contained in its approved tariff.”

16. Under chapter 81.28 RCW, carriers that are subject to Commission rate
regulation are prohibited from providing shippers with refunds or rebates of published tariff

charges:

' See RCW 81.04.010(11) (including “solid waste collection companies” in the definition of “common carrier”).
%> See RCW 81.28.040 (requiring common carriers subject to rate regulation to file tariffs with the Commission).
3 See RCW 81.77.030 (authorizing the Commission to “supervise and regulate every solid waste collection
company in this state, [b]y fixing and altering its rates, charges, classifications, rules and regulations) and WAC
480-70-236 (requiring solid waste carriers to file tariffs with the Commission).
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A common carrier subject to regulation by the commission as to rates and
service shall not charge, demand, collect, or receive a greater or less or different
compensation for transportation of persons or property, or for any service in connection
therewith, than the rates, fares, and charges applicable to such transportation as
specified in its schedules filed and in effect at the time and shall not refund or remit in
any manner or by any device any portion of the rates, fares, or charges so
specified . . . .*

The statute further prohibits carriers from discriminating against customers through “any
special rate, rebate, drawback, or other device or method” that would allow the carrier to charge
one customer more or less than it charges other, similarly situated customers.” Unlawful
rebates result in rate discrimination and unreasonable preferences in violation of RCW
81.28.180 and RCW 81.28.190.

17. RCW 81.28.210 prohibits biomedical waste collection companies from assisting
any person to obtain biomedical waste collection services “at less than the rates then
established and in force in accordance with the schedules filed and published under this title, by
false billing, false classification, false weight or weighing, or false report of weight, or by any
other device or means.”

18.  Recycling services are not subject to rate regulation by the Commission.
However, the discounts on recycling charges that WM has offered biomedical waste customers
are as effective as cash payments to discount the rates specified in the biomedical waste tariff
WM has filed with the Commission and are therefore unlawful rebates under RCW 81.28.080
and a violation of WAC 480-70-236, RCW 81.28.210 and other applicable law.

19.  RCW 81.77.040 prohibits solid waste collection companies from operating
without a certificate of public convenience and necessity issued by the Commission. WAC
480-70-081(6) makes clear that solid waste collection companies must operate within the
conditions and limitations of their certificates. WM is a solid waste collection company and the

services it provides to St. Joseph Medical Center under WM’s so-called “ecoFinity” sharps

4 RCW 81.28.080.
>,
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waste program are solid waste collection services subject to the requirements of RCW
81.77.040. Biomedical waste has no value and cannot be recycled until it is treated to render it
non-infectious; thus, the St. Joseph Hospital sharps waste does not constitute “recyclable
materials.” Further, by its own admission, WM recycles only a small portion of the sharps
waste it claims to be handling for St. Joseph as a commercial recycling service. Accordingly,
the service offered by WM to St. Joseph Medical Center is biomedical waste collection and
transportation for disposal, not the transportation of recyclable materials, and the service
provided by WM to St. Joseph Medical Center is unlawful in violation of RCW 81.77.040 and
WAC 480-70-081(6)(a). See also, In the Matter of Lowell Haugen, d/b/a Medical Waste

Management Systems, Inc., Order M.V.G. No. 148521 (WUTC April 1995).

20.  'WM'’s offers to provide “ecoFinity” sharps waste collection services at rates
lower or different from those contained in its Commission-approved tariff violate RCW
81.28.210, RCW 81.28.080 and WAC 480-70-236, which prohibit biomedical waste collection
companies from providing biomedical waste collection services at rates that are higher, lower

or different from those contained in its Commission-approved tariff.

V. RELIEF REQUESTED

21. Stericycle respectfully requests that the Commission issue an order or orders as
follows:

a. Ordering WM to cease and desist from soliciting biomedical waste collection
business from Washington generators by offering them discounts on WM’s recycling or other
services or otherwise rebating any portion of its biomedical waste tariff rates in violation of
RCW 81.28.080, RCW 81.28.180, RCW 81.28.190, RCW 81.28.210 and WAC 480-70-236;

b. Declaring void all WM biomedical waste service contracts with Washington
generators that such generators were induced to enter into based on WM’s offers of unlawful

rebates, including WM’s contracts with Skagit Valley Hospital and Northwest Hospital;
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c. Declaring that biomedical waste collected by WM under its so-called
“ecoFinity” sharps waste program is subject to all of the requirements. of chapter 81.77 RCW
and chapter 480-70 WAC;

d. Declaring that WM’s services to St. Joseph Medical Center under the so-called
“ecoFinity” sharps waste program are unlawful in violation of RCW 81.77.040, WAC 480-70-
081(6)(a) and other applicable law;

e. Ordering WM to cease and desist from providing unauthorized biomedical waste
collection services to St. Joseph Medical Center or other biomedical waste generators outside
the territory described in certificate G-237 in which WM is authorized to provide biomedical
waste collection services;

f. Ordering WM to cease and desist from offering its “ecoFinity” sharps waste
program at rates that are lower than or different from the rates specified in the biomedical waste
tariff WM has filed with the Commission;

g. Requiring WM to provide notice in a manner directed by the Commission to all
of its biomedical waste collection customers and to all other biomedical waste generators in
Washington of WM’s unlawful actions, the Commission’s determinations in this proceeding
and the requirements of RCW 81.28.080, RCW 81.28.180, RCW 81.28.190, RCW 81.28.210
and WAC 480-70-236;

h. Imposing penalties on WM for its unlawful actions in such amounts as the

Commission deems appropriate; and

i. Providing Stericycle such other and further relief as the Commission deems
appropriate.
COMPLAINT -9 GARVEY SCHUBERT BARER
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DATED this 1st day of October, 2012.

GARVEY SCHUBERT BARER

By | AW Z{QW

Stephen B. Johnson, A #6196

Jared Van Kirk, WSBX #37029
Attorneys for Complainant and Petitioner
Stericycle of Washington, Inc.
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE
I, Vickie L. Owen, certify under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of
Washington that, on October 1, 2012, I caused to be served on the person(s) listed below in the

manner shown a copy of COMPLAINT AND PETITION FOR DECLARATORY RELIEF:

Washington Utilities and

Transportation Commission - Vfa Lega.l Messenger
1300 S. Evergreen Park Dr. SW [ ViaFacsimile

PO Box 47250 . o e
Olympia, WA 98504-7250 (] Vlia [tJ.S. I;)Aaﬂ, Fdlrst Class,
(360) 664-1160 ostage rrepal
records@utc.wa.gov O via Email

Jessica Goldman .

Polly L. McNeill O VTa Lega.l Messenger
SummitthLaw Group [J  ViaFacsimile

315 -5" Avenue South . P

Seattle, WA 98104 (] Vl;a [tI.S. II\)/[all, F(;rst Class,
jessicag@summitlaw.com ostage frepal
pollym@summitlaw.com Bl  Via Email
kathym(@summitlaw.com

deannas@summitlaw.com

Fronda Woods :

Office of the Attorney General - V%a Lega.l Messenger
Utilities and Transportation Division [0 ViaFacsimile

1400 S. Evergreen Park Drive SW . T

PO Box 40178 [x] VI;a [tJ.S. I;)/[aﬂ, F(;rst Class,
Olympia, WA 98504-0128 ostage rrepal

(360) 664-1225 [X]  Via Email

(360) 586-5522 Fax
fwoods@utc.wa.gov
BDeMarco(@utc.wa.gov

Dated at Seattle, Washington this 1% day of October, 2012.
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EXHIBIT A

WASTE MANAGEMENT

WM HEALTHCARE SOLUTIONS
INTEGRATED GONTRACT AND SERVICES
AGREEMENT

This INTEGRATED GONTRACT AND SERVICES Agreement
("Agresement’) Is enlered effective as of the date lasf exacuted
below on the signalure page ("Effective Dale”), by and batween
WM Heellhcare Solulions, Inc., a Delaware corporation (“WMHS")
and Skaglt Valloy Hospital, a Mount Vernon, WA ("Custom
with reference {o the following facls: -

A, WMHS Is In the businass of providing full service

consulling and management services (o health cere Insfilullons
and ancillary business enlaipitses with regard {o maximizing vaiue
and Increasing tha Guslomer's sallsfaction with respect (o the
Services represenied In the vardous Allachmenls of Ihis
Agreement;

B. Gustomer wishes to relain WMHS to perform ceiain
consulling, management and other services pursuanl {o the terms
sol forth hereln, and WMHS wishes to provide such seivices {o
Customer on such lerms;

NOW, THEREFORE, the parlies agree as follows:

1.  Sewlces. WMHS, liself or through lis affillates
and subcontractors, shall have the excluslve right to provide the
Customer tho specliiod services set forth In an Attachmeni(s)
(the “Services™). Each service shall have ils own Attachment,
Should the Customer desire WMHS to peiform additional
services, the relevant attachment(s) shall be prepered, slgned by
both parties, and attached {o (hls Agreement. The terms of each
Attachment and any amendments or supplements thereto are
hereby Incorporated by reference hereln in thelr entirety, and the
spacillc terms of a particular Attachment shall confrol if such
torms differ from the terms of this Agreement, as these gervices
may Include the management of varlous waste sireams. Unless
specified otherwise In an Altachment-to this Agreement,
Customer represents and warrants that It is fully aware of the
type and character of the wastes it generates, and Customer
acknowledges that [t has the undelegable duty to ensure proper
classification, segregallon, packaging and storage prlor to pick
up of each of Its wasle sireams. Nolwithstanding anything
contalned In thls Agreement or any Altachment to the conlrary,
to the extent that WMHS Is simply being appolnted to act solely
as a blling agent on behalf of the Customsr for a particular
wasto slream(s), WMHS Is only assuming the role of an agent
for a disclosed principal and shall have no Habliities arlsing out of
exXisling agreemenis betwesn Customer and Hz vendors (if
applicable, 590 Pricing Schedule Attachment). To the extent that
WMHS is solely acling as an agent for Customer with respect to
biling and Involce management for services rendered to
Cuslomer by other third party vendors, WMHS shall be
appointed by Customer as an agent lo act on ls behalf in the
management of any existing contracts with third party waste
managoment vendors, Customer agrees to provide wrilten
Instruction to each third party vendor to recognize the authority of
WMHS to act on behalf of Customer, and WMHS will provide
assislance In accomplishing nolification of third party vendors,
Cuslomor agrees to Indemnify, save harmless and defend
WMHS and its affillates from, and accepts full responsibility for,
any and all fabliity aslsing out of the use of Its vandor's services,

The Agreement includes an Attachment that ists the

Conftdential Page 1

locations of the Customer where Services will be provided. Such

list of focations may be amended from lime to time by the partles
In wriling. This Attachment Is hereby incorporated by reference
herein in its entirely.

2. Propor Waste. Cuslomer acknowledges and
understands that WMHS may enter Into contracts with third party
Service Providers (“Service Provider”) to provide sefecled
sorvices Including, but not limited to, the (ransport andlor
disposal of cerlain waste sireams generated by Customer and
specifically (dentilled, defined and made subject to this
Agreemenl by virlue of the signed Attachment relaling therelo
("Proper Waste"), Cuslomer agrees (0 not deposit inlo Service
Provider's or WMHS' equipment or place for collection any wasle
of a type not specifically covered by the Attachment. Any wasto
other than Proper Wastle constliutes “Excluded Waste", If
requested by WMHS, Cusiomer shall provide WMHS or Service
Provider with a Proflle Sheet describing all waste malerals with
respect o which Services will be performed and, when required
by WMHS or Service Provider, a reprosentafive sample of such
waste malerials. Customer shall updale such information
Immediately upon becoming aware of any material change In the
type or characteristic of the waste, Profile Sheet means a form
provided by WMHS, which Customer shall complele desciibing
In detaill the nature and characleristics of Customer's waste
materials. Proflle sheets shall be submitted io WMHS for review
and approval prior to commencement of services,

3, Fees. Customer shall pay the fees for the Services
as set forth on the Attachmeni(s), Fees shall be Invoiced on a
monthly basls, and shall be due and payable net fifleen (15} duys
from the date of Involce. Interest shall be due at the rale of one
and one-half percent, or such lowar rate as may be required by law,
per month or fraclion thereof on all amounts past due.

4. Fee Ad]ustments. Unless specified otherwise In
an Aftachment to this Agreement, because disposal and fuel
costs conslitule a significant portion of the cost of the services to
be provided hereunder and because contracts with other Service
Providers may enable the Service Provider to Increase the rates
the Service Provider charges to WMHS, Customer agrees that
WMHS may pass on {o It under this Agreement any cost
Increases It direclly incurs, or Is obligated to pay lo Service
Providers under lts Agreements with them, and related fo
Customer's Proper Waslte. Such cosl Increases may also be
due to any Increase in disposal or fuel costs; any change in the
composilion of the Proper Wasle: Increased cosls due to
uncontrollable clrcumslances, including, without fimitation,
changes In local, state or foderal laws or regulations, imposition
of laxos, fees or surcharges and acts of God such as floods,
fires, elc., or Increases in other governmental charges assessed
agalnst or passad through to WMHS (other than Income or real
properly taxes), Company may also Increase the charges to
reflect incraases in the Consumer Price Index for the municipel
or reglonal area in which the Services are rondered. Increases in
charges for reasons other than as provided above requlre the
written consent of Customer. All rate adjustments as provided
above shall leke offect upon notification from Company fo
Customer. Customer shall pay the rates in full within 30 days of
recelpt of each Involce from Company. To the extent that WMHS
is acling solely as a billing agent on behalf of Customer for a
particular wasto slream(s), vendor Involces shell be managed as
provided In the Prcing Schedule Attachment and the applicakle
addendum, In the event that WMHS commences 1o provide direct
colleclion, transporiallon, treatment and/or disposal senvices, fees
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for those direct services shall bo mulually agreed upon in weiling by
the partles prior to commencement of service.

5.  Title. WMHS or the Service Provider shall acqulre
tlite to the Proper Waste when It Is toaded Into WMHS' or Service
Providers truck. Title to and liablity for any Excluded Waste
shafl remaln with the Customer.

6, Excluded Waste, In the event Customer delivers
Excluded Waste to WMHS or a Service Provider, Customer
shall, atits sole cost, Inmediately remove or arrange to have the
Excluded Waste removed from the controf or property of WMHS
or the Service Provider. If the rejecied waste is nol so removed
within three (3) days from delivery, WMHS or the Service
Provider shall have the right and authority to handle and dispose
of the Excluded Wasle, Cuslomer shall pay and/for relmburse
WMHS or the Service Provider for any and alf costs incurred as
a resull of or relating to thelr handling. and disposition of the
Excluded Wasts, including, without itmitalion, costs of inspection,
testing, analysls, handling, treatment and disposal, as well as
internal costs Incurred by WMHS In managing such an Excluded
Wasle event. In addition, Customer expressly agroes {o dafend,
Indemnify and hold hermiess WMHS and Service Provider from
and against any and all damages, penallles, fines and llabliitles
resulling from or arising out of, the delivery of Excluded Waste (o
WMHS or Service Provider,

7. Term. This Agreement shall commence on the
Effaclive Date, and shall continue for an initial term of two (2
yoars from the date that Services first begln for any Proper
Waste. This agreement will be extended for three (3) yoars
beyond the Initlal term after evaluation of pricing end services by
Customoer, the extenslon will be signed by both perties and any
pricing adjustmenis thal are lo be epplied will be noted in the
extenslon, In the event, the extension Is not signed by the end of
the initlal term, this agreement wiil be In effect on for additlonal 6-
month terms untll the extenslon ls executed or agreement Is
canceled In accordance with section 22.

8. L ulpment. To the extent thal, In
conjunction with the Services, Customer elects lo loase any
equipment from WMHS for the storage or processing of waste or
recyclablo materfals, Customer and WMHS shall enter into
WMHS’ form of Leaso Agreement and any such transactlon shal)
be separately governed by the terms thersof.

8.  Equlpment In Ganeyal, The equipment, matodals

and Improvemenls provided by WMHS to Cuslomer or its
agents, or for WMHS" use on Cuslomer's properly (the
“Equipment”) In performance of services heraunder shall remaln
the property of WMHS and Cuslomer shall have no Inferest In
such Equipment. Customer acknowledges that It Is responsible
for all loss end damage to the Equipment not caused by WMHS
{except for normal wear and tear). Cuslomer shall nof overload
(by welght or volume), move or alter the Equipment, and shall use
the Equipment only for lts proper and Intended purpose,

10. Relations of P WMHS shall be
desmed for all purposes to be an independent contraclor, and
nothing contalned hereln shall be construed ag crealing any
relationship of employment, partnership, agency (expross or
Implled), Joint venture or simifar arrangement between WMHS
and the Customer.

Confdentia! Page 2

1. ans tion and D al, Excopt as
provided otherwise In an Attachment, nothing contalned within
this Agreement shall be construed or Interpretod as requlring
WMHS fo assums the stalus of () a generator, () amanger or
(i) a storage, treatment or disposal facllity as those terms are
defined by the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, 42
U.S.C. Section 6901 et saq., the Comprehensive Environmental
Response, Compensalion and Liablfity Acl, 42 U,S.C. Seclion
9801 et s0q., and any other applicable foderal or slate statutes,
regulations, or nules, The Cuslomer hereby acknowledges that
while WMHS will offer completo waste solutions, the Customer Is
responsible for the nalure and contant of the waste it generales.

12. Independent Con r. WMHS shall perform
the Sorvices In lts capaclly as an Independent conlractor and In
such capaclty will selecl and contract with waste haulers,
transpostation agents, and other third parties, and will advise
ragarding the seleclion end use of ceraln equipment and
ullimate disposal sites for waste material, Nelther Customer nor
WMHS, nor thelr directors, officers, agents, employees or
representalives, shall be, fepresent, act, purport to act or be
deemed (o be the agent, representalive, employae or servant of
the othor.

13. Cuystomer Warranties: Unless  spacified

otherwise In an Attachment to this Agreement, Customer
represents and warrants to WMHS:

a. The description of and specifications pertaining to Its waste
materials In & profile sheet or other descriptions Is and at all
times will be true and correct In all material respecls, and waste
materlals tendered to WMHS or Service Provider will at il times,
Including, without limitation, at the time of recertification of the
waste materials, conform to the description and spacifications
contained in tho profile sheet. Customer will Immedlataly advise .
WMHS upon dlscovery of any materlal change in the nature or
type of the waste material,

b. Customar has made avallable to WMHS or Service Provider
all Information It has regarding the waste materials, and If
Customer recelves Information that the waste materdals
describod In the profile sheet present, or may present, & hazard
or risk {0 persons or the onvironment not reasonably disclosed in
the proflle sheof, Customer will promplly report such informatton
to WMHS and Service Provider;

C. if Customer Is not the Generator of the waste matorfals (with
Generator as defined by foderal, state and local taws), Customer
has all necessary authority lo enter Into this Agresment with
respect (o the wasto materials;

d. Cuslomer s under no legal restraint which prohiblts the
tranefer of possession of such waste materials fo WMHS;

©  Cuslomer shall comply wilh ail epplicable stalutes,
ordinances, laws, orders, rules and regulations and Company
pollclas, and shall provide WMHS and Service Provider a safe
work environment for Services performed on any premises
owned or controlled by Customer Including but not limited to if
WMHS or Service Providers will be sorting or managing wasle
for Customer. Cuslomer shall provide WMHS or Service
Providers applicable facllity safety rules and policios;

f. It WMHS or Servico Provider roquests that work areas be
secured, Cuslomer will be solely responsible for securing such
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work areas and for preventing anyone other than Contraclor
pergonnel from entering the designated work areas.

14, WMHS Woarrantles: WMHS represenis end
warcants to Customer that; :

a. WMHS or Service Provider Is engaged In the business of
performing Services with raspect lo waste materlals and has
developed the requisite expertise to perform the Sarvices agreed
to by Customer and WMHS hereln;

b, All WMHS or Service Provider vehicles and each Facliity
utllized to perform Services herein shall have all permils,
licenses, cerilficales or approvels required under applicable laws
and regulatlons for such Services; and

¢, WMHS and Sewvice Provider will perform Services for
Customer In a sefe and workmanlike manner, and In compliance
with afl stalutes, ordinances, laws, orders, rules and regulations
applicable to the Services. :

16. Damage {o PavemenUEqulpment. WMHS shall

not be responsible for damage to Customer's pavoment or other
driving surface due to the welght of the WMHS's vehicles, Any
equipment supplled will remain WMHS's property. Cuslomer will
be responsible for any loss or damage resulling from Customer's
use, possession or handling of the equipment, except for normal
wear ond {eas. Cusiomer will use the equipment only for its
Intended purpose and will not overload by weight or volume,
move or ailer tha sequipment and will take reasonable
pracautions lo prevent others from dolng the same. On
collection day, Customer wHll provide unobstructed access to the
oquipment, and If the equipment s Inaccessible or overloaded,
Cuslomar’s service will be subject to an addilional charge.

16, Nagllgence or D s Caused S,
WMHS shall indemnify, defend aend hold Customer and il
direclors, officers, employees, agenls and represeniatives
harmless from and agalnsl any and all costs, losses, damages or
expanses (excepling onfy consequential or liquidated damages)
resulling from the negligencs, Intentional misconduct, breach of
this Agraement or violation of law of WMHS* dlreclors, officers,
agents, employess or representalives pesforming sorvices under
this Agresment.

17. Hazardous Substances Indemnlfication, With

respect to Proper Waste dellvered by Customer and disposed of
at a disposal facliity owned and operated by WMHS or its parent,
effillate or subsldlary, WMHS agrees to Indemnify, defend and
hold harmless Customer for all clalms, actval damages, natural
rasources damages, Injurles, cosls, response, remediation and
removal coals, losses, llabilities, and expenses (Including but not
limiled to reasonable altomeys' and experis' fees) of any kind
whalsoever pald, Incurred, or suffered by or against Customer
arising from or attributable to any repalr, clean up, removal
actlon or response aclion underiaken pursuant fo the
Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensalion and
Liability Act, 42 U.S.C. Seclion 8601 ef seq, (CERCLA), or other
simliar foderal, state or tocal law or regulations. This Indemnity Is
Intended to operate as an egresment of WMHS pursuant to
Section 107(e) of CERCLA and any other relevan! and
appilcable simllar state law, rule or regulation to defend, protect,
hold harmless and indemnlfy Customer,

Confldential Page 3

18, ce_or Cause Sorvice
Providors. WMHS shall not be llable to Customer under any
theory of recovery (including without Umitation, negligent
selaclion) for any cost, loss, damage, or expense as a resuit of
the actual performance, malfeasancs, negligence, Intentional
misconduct, breach of any agresment or violation of law, of
Service Provider, lts dirsclors, officers, employees, agenis or
represantalives, Cuslomer acknowledges that ils remedy In
such situatlons I8 {0 pursus the Service Provider to recover its
costs, losses, damages or expenses.

18, Ne 0 amage sed by Cus .
Customer shall indemnify, defand and hold WMHS end Its
directors, officers, employees, agenls, and representatives, and
spocifically Including any Servica Provider, hermless from and
agalnat any and all costs, losses, damages or expenses fesulling
from the negligence, Intentlonal misconduct, breach of this
Agreement or violalion by Customer's directors, officers,
employses, agents or representatives performing services under
this Agreement, For example but not by limitation, fallure to
properfy segregate, mark and package Proper Waste; or the
lender of any Excludead Waste shall serve as the basls for
Customer's indemnity under this paragraph, unless specified
otherwlsa in an Attachment to this Agreement.

20, pntlalit d Materlals, The
partlas acknowladge the competiiive nalure of the waste
coflection, transportation and disposal indusiry and agree that
each of the parlles derives a commercial benefit if the financlal
terms of thelr relationship are not discussed publicly or widely
known. Accordingly, each of the partles hereto agrees to use ils
best efforts to keep the financlal terms end conditions of this
Agreemenl secret and confldentlal and to not publicly disclose
such terms fo any third party unless required (o do 50 by [aw. At
the explration or termination of this Agreement, Customer shall
promplly raturn lo WMHS, or destroy and provide cerlification
thereof If requested by WMHS, all malerials, willings, posters,
guldalinos, Instruclions, equipment, modals, mochanisms and
the like oblalned from or through WMHS or owned by WMHS or
its affliates, Including, but not fimited to, all WMHS or its
effilates’ confldential information.

21, Force Majoure. In the avent elther party shall be
prevented from performing lts obligalions hereundsr due to
govarnmental or administrative prohibilions, labor difficuliles
(Including a breach or terminallon of its agresments with a
Service Provider), acls of God, acls of public enemy, torrorist
acls, riot, accldents, breakdown of equipment, weather
conditions, delivery Interruptions, or other causes beyond such
party’s control, the party so prevented shail, upon nofice to the
other party, be thereafter released from iis obligations so long as
such causes shall continuo.

22, Termination; Liquidated Damaces

Unlass specifiod otherwise In an Altachment to thls Agreement,
(a) Either party may terminate this Agreement prior to the end of
Its then curcent term by providing ninety (80) days advance
written nofice to the other party of its materlal breach of this
Agreement, such terminalion to be effeclive only if the other
perty falls lo reasonably cure such alleged material breach within
such ninely {90) day period (or, if the nalure of the breach Is
such that a cure would reasonably take tonger than 90 days, the
contract will remain In effect so long as the breaching party
promptly commences a cure and diiigenlly pursues same untll a
cure Is achleved). Such a termination shall not have the effect of
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terminaling the Customer's obligation to pay WMHS any faes
tesulling from WMHS' Services pursuant to a particular
Atlachment, .

(b) If Customer breaches any materlal term or condition of this
Agreement, Including fallure to pay on a fimely basls, or if
Customer becomes Insolvent, the subject of an order for rellef In
bankruptcy, recelvership, reorganization, dissolulion, or simller
law, or makes an assignment for the beneflt of its Customers or If
WMHS deems ltsolf Insecure as to payment the same shell
constitute a defaull of this Agreement ("Defaull’) and WMHS
may terminate this Agreement for cause by delivering written
notice of termination,

(c) 1f Customer terminates this Agreement for any reason other
than as specifted hereln, or In the event WMHS lerminales this
Agreement as a result of Customer's Defaull, Customer shall pay
liquidaled demages calculated as follows: (1) if the remalning
Initlal Term or Renewal Term under this Agreement is six or
more months, Customer shall pay an amount equal o ils
average monthiy bilings over the last six months, multiplled by
slx; (2) If the remaining Inllial Term or Renewal Term under this
Agreement Is less than six months, Customer shall pay Iis
average monthiy blliing over tho last six months muitiplied by the
number of months remalning In the infllal Term or Renewal
Term. Customer acknowiodges that actual damage to WMHS In
fact occurs when Customer defaulls under this Agreement, and
that the damage is difficult to fix or prove. Accordingly, the
foregolng Mquidated damage provision s reasonable and
commenesurate with the enficlpated loss to WMHS and Is an
agreed fee, not a penalty, Calleclion of llquidated damages by
WMHS shall be in addltion to any rights or ramedies avallable o
Company under this Agraement or at common law,

23, B Cuslomer acknowledges that
WMHS shall be obligated o take directions solely from Customer
and authorized employees of Customer with regard fo the

subject matter of this Agreement; and WMHS shall not recognize’

any real or percelved clefm of authorfly by, or be required fo
respond to, any third parties who may clalm o have an agency
or brokerage agreement to act on behalf of Customer.

24, Yendors; On behalf of the Customer, WMHS shall
work with Its own afflliates and subcontractors, and the qualified
vendors who have been awarded service contrects with the
Customer and coordinale aclivilles assoclatad with service
transition with Incumbent providers whare applicable, to monltor
and supervise equipment Instatfation, sarvice star up and
ongolng operations. WMHS will evaluate subconirector and
vendor performance. As vendor contracls explre, WMHS will
provide service through Its afflllates or subconlractors or assist
the Customer In procurement and negotlation of new vendor
contracts. WMHS will provide Inillal and on-golng management
and coordination of In-sarvice lraining o be fumished by the
specific third party vendor assoclated with any of the services
provided under this Agreement,

25, Billing Atent; WMHS shall work as “billing
agent® for all services, Customer will provide Information
regarding exisling agreements Customer has with other service
providers where the waste sfream Is assigned to WMHS
(including contract explration dates, service Information and
cost), a signed lettar of authorization to send 1o lhe service
providers notifying them of WMHS' involvement In managing
thelr services as Customer's agent, and a letter of Introduction
for WMHS to present to each faclllty manager on WMHS' flrst
visil to each of Cuslomer’s sllas, If applicabla. Blliing for services

Confidentlal Page 4

provided prior to tho Effoclivo Date wil be the responsibiiity of

~ the Customor.

26. Wasto Sorvices Inyolce; Provided that WMHS

recolves monthly Invoices from lis afflliates and subcontractors In
a timely manner, WMHS shall audit, review for service accuracy
and confract complance, and consolidate such Involces into one
‘waste services Involce”, thet may Include any olhesr waste
slreams Indicated In altached attachments and will provide the
aggregated waste services Involce to Customer.

27. Roporting: WMHS will eslablish with (he
Cuslomer a customized report format that will aflow the
Customer o access source dala on-ine and query the
Information to create sepacific reports applicable lo the
operallons,

Sustalnabllity Inltlatives: WMHS personnel will
identify and Implement best-in-class allematives for waste
minimfzation, beneficlal reuse, waste diversion, and recycling
procedures, In this regard, WMHS will provide;

a. Inittal and on-going continuing education,
Internal messaging and communicalions
necessary {o support these protocols,

b. External “operallons management™ that will
include the supervision and responsiuliily to
Insure both the quality and timely defivery of
sorvicos provided by the vendor partners.
WMHS will provide one point-of-contacl for all
vendor rolationships and will create service
protocol that will mitlgate service deficlenclos
and create problem resolutions procedures,
WMHS will work with designated hospital staff
{o ensure the coordination and expsdiency of
all services provided.

c¢. Internal “operallons management® (internal
client stakeholders) that will Include the
identificetion and developmen! of enhanced
Internal operatlon procedures relevant lo the
handling of all of the Included waste
categories.  WMHS will help with the
ostablishment and management of internal
“green teams” that wil directly support and
promole all sustainabilily Initlatives defined by
the institution,

29, Non-Sollcitation of Sorylce Providars, Without
prior written consent from WMHS, Customer will not solici,
directly or Indirectly, the Services from Sarvico Providers during
the term of the Agreement and for 90 days afier the termination
of the Agreement,

30. Changes| lces. The partles
agreo that changes lo the Initial scope of services are bast made
In wiiting. Howaever, the partles acknowledga that there may be
circumstances when a written change order may not be possitle
al the time when such change order Is needed. If Cuslomer's
fepresantalive (whom we believe In good fallh Is authorized by
Customer) verbally requests WMHS or Service Provider to
perform services which are not parl of the Initlal scope of
Services and WMHS or Service Provider agrees verbally to
perform those additlonal services, Cuslomer agrees thal the
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foquest and WMHS or Semvice Provider's acceplance wil
constifute a change order and the fees shall be adjusted
accordingly. The partles further agree thal, as soon as
convenlent thereaftar, the partles will put the verbal change order
In writing, to be slgned by the parties.

31. Insurance. Each party shall procure and maintaln,
at ls expense, during the fem of this Agreement, at least the
following Insurance covering acthvilles performed under, and
conlraciual obligations underiaken in, this Agreement,

COVERAGE -

Worker's Compansation  Statulory $1,000,000

Employer's Llabliity $1,000,000 per occurrence
General Llabllity $5,000,000 combined; single timit

(bodily Injury/property damages)

Automoblle Liablilty $2,000,000 per occurience
{bodily Injury/property damages)

Pollution Liability $3,000,000 per occurrence;
$6,000,000 aggregale

Pror to commencing the Services, sach party shall furalsh to the
other party certificates of the Insurancoe required In the above
sections. Such certificates shall provide that thirty (30) days
written nollce shall be given to the other party prlor lo
cancellation of or malerlal change In the coverage. Each party
shall name the othsr party as an addltional insured to the extent
of thelr Indemnity obligation on thelr respective General Liabliity
and Aulomoblle Liablilty Insurance policies. FAILURE Of WMHS
OR CUSTOMER TO PROVIDE INSURANCE AS HEREIN
REQUIRED OR FAILURE OF WMHS OR CUSTOMER TO
REQUIRE EVIDENCE OF INSURANCE OR TO NOTIFY THE
OTHER PARTY OF ANY BREACH OF THE REQUIREMENTS
OF THIS SECTION SHALL NOT BE DEEMED TO BE A
WAIVER OF ANY OF THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF
THIS CONTRACT, NOR SHALL THEY BE DEEMED TO BE A
WAIVER OF THE OBLIGATIONS TO DEFEND, INDEMNIFY,
AND HOLD HARMLESS AS REQUIRED HEREIN.

32. & . This Agreement shall be
governed by and construed In accordance with the laws of the
State In which the services are to be performed and shall be
enforced to the fullest extent permissible {Including, but not by
way of limilatlon, by Injunction) under the laws appllsd by the
courts In each Stale and jurisdiction In which enforcement Is
sought.

33. Severablilty. If any one or more of the provisions
of this Agreement shall be declared Invalld, vold or
unenforceabls, the same shall not affect the valldity or
enforceability of any other provislons of this Agreement,

34, Bind! omo ssignment. This
Agreement shall be binding upon and Inure fo the benefit of
WMHS and the Customer and their respeclive successors and
‘assigns; provided however, that this Agresment may not be
assigned by Cuslomer withowt the prior wiitten consent of
WMHS.

35. Notice. All nofices required or permitied to be
glven hereunder shall be given In wriling and shall be deemed to
have baen given when personally delivered or malled, by
corlified or registered mafl, retum recelpt requested, addressed
1o the Intended reciplent as foflows:

Confidential Page §

Jto WMHS:

WM Healthcare Solullons
1001 Fannin Street
Housfon, TX 77002
Attn: Ganaral Counsel
Facsimile: 713 209-9710

, %i(aq'& Yolle 4 Hosp i dut

IS E, kKivead
Mouwl Yevponn wn 65273

38, . This Agreement including
any Aftachments hereto, constitules the entire agreement of
WMHS and the Customer with respect fo the subjact matter
hereof, and supersades any previous agreement or
understandings; wilten or oral. This Agresment may nof. be
modified except In wriling execuled by both parties hereto.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parlles have execuled this
Agreement effective as the last date executed below.

WMHS:

By

Michael P, Mclnemey, President, WM Heallhcare
Solullons, Inc.

Date;

Customer:

By:

Name & Tille: \jor'\\ \BKE\&\W\\’ AN
Date;__ \Q\\\S\\\
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i ,'(-‘ MENT‘) originally-datéd _ Séplemier 1,
L D¢ ,are corpor, on (W 15%. :and . Skagit Valley Hospita1
E ective Date') ' ' )

portation, disposal and tieatriéntiof Solid Waste (as defined-

“Norih side ~inclded: T inciued
Kf ney Genter .

CAID 30 VOPENTOP — FOSPITAL “WCLODEG. —— INGLUBED'
"7 LOADING DOGK il :

Pricing ATEhment 21

Itis understood and. agreed trat thie:tate above ds: based on’a: totai annual VOlume nofto excaed: the faltowmg volumes' by
wasle'stream as; measured by WMHS:

{ ::-453,.;. tons amnauy; 00°pulls anhually-

;_?Sd;ﬁﬁdgal"wﬁbht-éxcéedlng*len percent (10%) . of lﬁe@tated:ﬁmual amo‘unlshéll be billed:at the-following rates:

: achments are mcorporated herein by
é.térms ‘of this Attachment and the

IN. WITNESS WHEREOF each party hefet' . has caused its duly authorized representathe to execute this. Auachment to Ihe
AGREEMENT as of the day -and yearfirst wittan above,

SKAGIT VAL '. HOSPITAL WM HEALTHCARE SOLUTIONS, INC.

" Authorized Agent

Authonzed } gem = '
PritName: __ \_afla \s E:\ qu\
‘PrintTitle: L \CAay
Dates_____ h}\wﬁ\“ ”,
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ACT AND SERWCES Agreemeﬁi (“AGREEMENT’) origlnal!y dated . 1 5;
s, Inc., ‘a “Delaware: :corgoration . (WMHS?) and- -Skaglt Valley Hospifal
i (Effectxve Date')

i et management  trahsportation, disposal, and tresiment of-Regyoling: Services (as

Rate per H ) Rate per ton

BYREL T odsd

: plasuc

By FEL
Cardboard

. ;- > ew

, d that ‘Custornes has good-fills to- the: :Recydable

s; encumb am;es and security interests. Castonter further

: Materials under !hstgreement consitutes or conlams any Exclidéd
e:substances:. )

Al 6f the- terms; r.ovena itk onditions set-forth n the AGREEMENT and its Attachments are Indorporated herem by
referénce ‘as. 5 Sanm d . been set foith herein..If there is a conflict: between the:terms of -this Aﬂachment and:the -
AGREEMENT, the {erms of this:Attachiient shall prevail.

IN WITNESS WHEREOGF, each, party horsto-has caiised its duly authiorized representative to execute this Attachment:to thie
g AGREEMENT as of the:day-and’ year flrst: wrltten above, ’ : :

SKA ifT'?VAL EWHOSPITAL: WM HEALTHCARE SOLUTIONS; INC.

By:. By ..
Anthcnzed Agent Authorized Agent
- PrintName: _ \ &S Print Name; ...
=Pnht’f“tle Print Title;
Pate? Date::

Veision 10442010
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Addendum C

Regulated Medical Waste

This Attachment to the INTEGRATED CONTRACT AND SERVICES Agreement ("AGREEMENT") originally dated __September 1,
2011_ _, between WM Healthcare Solutions, Inc., a Delaware corporation (‘WMHS") and _Skagit Valley Hospital
(‘CUSTOMER") is made effective ___November, 1, 2014 (‘Effective Date”),

1. Services: WMHS shall begin the exclusive collection, management, transportation, disposal and treatment of Regulated
Medical Waste (as defined in Atachment 3),

Plant Namg Address Equipment Location Price per Price per
container Pound [unless
[untess flat flat rate]

rate]

Skagit Vallay 1415 E Kincaid 2017 gaflons Hospital Included in Fiat included in Flat
Hospital Mount Vernon, 30-32 gallons Monthty Monthly
WA 20-43 gallons
10-30 galion
boxes
2, Flat Monthly Rate: {if applicable, see Pricing Attachment 2)
3. Volume:~

Itis understood and agreed that the rate above is based on a total annual volume not to exceed the following volumus by
waste stream as measured by WMHS:

a. { 3000 ) containers annually (at hospital)
Additional volume exceeding ten percent (10%) of the stated annual amount shall be billed at the following rate:
) Per most current Waste ManagementWashington State approved tariff rates
All of the terms, covenants and conditions set forth in the AGREEMENT and ts Attachments are Incorporated herein by

reference as if the same had been set forth hersin. If there is a conflict between the terms of this Attachment and the
AGREEMENT, the terms of this Attachment shall prevail. .

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each party hereto has caused its duly authorized representative to execute this Attachment to the
AGREEMENT as of the day and year first written above.

SKAGIT VA Y HOSPITAL WM HEALTHCARE SOLUTIONS, INC.
By: By:

Authorizf qup?’ Authorized Agent

Print Name: AR B \\(\‘§U\ Print Name:

Print Title: RE T\ Print Title:

Date: \,0\\\%\ \\ Date:
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Addendum E

Confidential Documents

This Attachment to the INTEGRATED CONTRACT AND SERVICES Agreement ("AGREEMENT"} originally dated _September 1,
2011 , between WM Healthcare Solutions, Inc., a Delaware corporation {"WMHS") and _ Skagit Valley Hospital___
("CUSTOMER") is made effeclive _ November 1, 2011 (*Effective Date”).

1. Services; WMHS shall begin the exclusive collection, management, transportation, disposal, and treatment of Confidential Documents
(as defined in Attachment 3).

Address Location Price per Unit
{unless flat

rate]

Piant Name

Description

Skagit Valley 1415 E Kincald Document Various through Included in flat
Hospital Mount Vernon, Shredding with hospital ~ see
. WA bins Exhibit B
Offsite See attachment See Included In flat
Locations as 1 Aftachement 1
per Attachment
1-locations

2. The fiat rate includes up to 1800 tips annually (based on information provided by CUSTOMER). If tips vary by more than 5% than an
extra;

@)
3.  Elat Monthly Rats: (if applicable, see Pricing Attachment 2)

$5.75 per tip fee will be assessed.

I of the terms, covenants and conditions set forth in the AGREEMENT and its Attachments are Incorporated herein by
reference as if the same had been set forth herein. If there Is a conflict between the terms of this Attachment and the
AGREEMENT, the terms of this Attachment shall prevail.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each party hereto has caused its duly authorized representative to execute this Attachment to the
AGREEMENT as of the day and year first written above,

WM HEALTHCARE SOLUTIONS, INC.

SKACI\TVAL\ OSPITAL
By:

- By:
Authorized Agent Authorized Agent
Print Name: _\ o, M\S\'O Print Name:
Print Title: LD Print Title:
Date: \Q\\\-ﬁ 1Y Date:
Confidential Page 1 Version 10-14-2010
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ES. Agrésment ("AGREEMENT") ‘originally dated Ji ly220 2011,
"WMHS") and::Skagit Valley Hosplta( a Hospnal locatéd: in Moun( -

S_15,800"_ horithly and torthe teimi of thie Agreenent fot-Senices as..
[ : nd adreed that the rate Stated-above is based on'a totakanaual
weighl notto exoeed the: fol!owmg welghts by ‘wasle:stream as reported byWMHS (Seej\ddendums for volume breakdown.):

Waste Stream ’ " Incl Effectwe Date

B %1101/2011"
_
£ TAI01201
7 PharmEcol TIOT0
I Universalwaste NG |
. VIZH = Ch emicalWaste NO
g Pharmaceutical Waste ~ —~ NO—
K NO~
S §Ti
N Aphis Marpol Waste —————No"
0 HazardousWaste | |
Cansulting ST
2 M MHS - sh:'TIwork as ‘blmngagent"torwaslesemces and-wil récaive: monthly invoices froit its affillatés -

ny:suby al that shall-be reviewed; based oi information prowded by CUSTOMER, for sejvice accuracy and contract:
: comphance and consolidated inta one: “waste: sen/ces invoice™ lo be:provided. to the: CUSTOMER. The: invowe shatt &e provided to Castomer

st Customer Name.

Addresslconlactmformatuon Skagit Valleprspita{ At Robert Spohin, Environmental- Services:, PO Box 1376, Mount Vernon
WA 98273

3 Waste Services: Irivoles: Provided that: WMHS 1eceives monlhly invoicés from ifs: aﬁ‘uates dnd dny subdonlfactors -and:
vendors in-a timely.manner; WMHS. shall- consoﬂdate such invoices:into ene "waste services if.ing .

Cate atte ddenduris.and will provide: the, aggregated waste sarwces invoice
‘involce shigll: be formatled ccordl i

vto WMHS Sp ecmcalfonsr anq wIl

Cenfidential ‘Page fof 2 Version. 9:10:2010-
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Page 2 Attachment 2 Pricing - Inclusive

and/or multiple facility locations confaining s fic accounts payable_contact Information to retain CUSTOMER within their

specified net terms as Hsted In Section 3-{Fees) of the Aqreement.

4, Program Manager: WMHS will provide to the CUSTOMER a program manager for all facilities who will perform the
following:

(a) Work as the Haison belween CUSTOMER and waste/recycling service providers ensuring appropriate dock-In and dock-
out solutions either through WMHS or 3™ parly operations.

{b) Work with CUSTOMER to ensure that the implemantation of the plan is achieved on time and within the expected cost
parameters,

(c) Assist with compliance of policies, procedures and regulations.

()] Cofltaborate with WMHS to provide solutions to problems, share best practices, identify new opporiunities, products and
services.

(e) Work directly with CUSTOMER to identify objectives. Utilize and direct resourcas to implement plans and programs

throughout all assigned facilities.
All of the terms, covenants and conditions set forth in the AGREEMENT and its Attachments are incorporated herein by
reference as if the same had been set forth herein. If there is a conflict between the terms of this Attachment and the
AGREEMENT, the terms of this Attachment shall prevail.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each party hereto has. caused its duly authorized representative to execute this Attachment to the
AGREEMENT as of the day and year first written above.

SKAGIT VALLEY HOSPITAL WM HEALTHCARE SOLUTIONS, INC,

MOUNTY, VERNQNNVA
: By: __
Authorized Agent

Authonzed .
Ai/s(k % Print Name:
Print Name: &0\ %\dx Print Title:
Print Title: Date:
Date: \\‘3; ¢ >\\\

Confidential Page 2 of 2 Version 9-10-2010
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CCUSTOMER®.

Fhis 18 an Altachiment to the tNTEGRATED co“*
1. .. between WM Healthcare St

"~ Rabed Spon

“Same

Same

"~ Robert Spopn

Same

~same-

- Skagit Valley 221 soah i3>
~Glinfeal Mourt-Vernon,
Servioss Bidg WA 98273

Same

“Same:

St,; - Mount
Vernon, Wa
98273

“206 south: 13" B

"~ “Robert SpoRn.

- Same

“Same.

" Shredding only

'Rot;er,tﬁpohp )

Same

Same

Confidentiaf

WMO000242



Page 2 Attachment 1 Customer Locations

All of the terms, covenants and conditions set forth in the AGREEMENT and its Attachments are incorporated herein by
reference as If the same had been set forth herein. If there is a conflict between the terms of this Attachment and the
AGREEMENT or another Attachment, the terms of this Attachment shait prevall.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each party hereto has caused its duly authorized representative to execute this Attachment to the
AGREEMENT as of the day and year first written above.

SKAGIYALL OSPITAL WM HEALTHCARE SOLUTIONS, INC.
‘By: A By:

Authorized Agent Authorized Agent

Print Name: SO, N\M Print Name:

Print Title: LAAD Print Title:
Date: \o \ (X‘{\‘ Date:
Confidential Page 2 of 2 Version 5-27-2011
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Waste Managament

- T 3
W e

Seattle, WA 98108
423 485 5201

WM AGREEMENT?

CUSTOMER ACCT#

ACCT: NAME
ssRv; ADDR
CITY, ST 2IP

COUNTY/Parish

TEL#:
CONTACT
E-MAIL

206-368-2125

Northwest Hospital
1850 North 115" st
Seatfle, WA 98133
King

FAX
Juan Escalante

ivan.escalante@nwhsea.org

EQUIPMENT/SERVIGE SPECIFICATIONS —

8IC Code

062

Type of Buginess Hospltal

REASON CODE Renew

EFFECTIVEDATE Q74043844 LAST API DATE

BILL. NAME
BILL. ADDR
CiTY, ST2Zip
COUNTY/Parish
TEL ¥
CONTACT
E-MAIL

_ Tl rda P

—_—

|

Opan-top Compactor Type Cormpactos Unit Rocaiving 3%%——‘
[ oy Sk Stalionary | Beif Contained Ownership Sze | Ownenshin  |Ondai] u T w T F [ []
00,
1 X 0 WM | (L] x
Wi [ [
CUSTOMER. CUSTOMER
Wil [ Wl
[ CUSTOMER [ CUST
WH T Wil
| CUSTOMER [
Driver RoadsfContainer Dascription Here
o Service Frequ
Open-Top Compactor Type Compactor Unit 0 ¢ it e Aoote 7 _—
oD ay Slze Stationary ™ | Self Contalned | 6k Ownership Gixo Ovwnershlp [OnCall] T W T F 8 8
i oc.
[ Wil 1]
1 * » cnsrol::‘zf CUSTO x
[ CUSTOUER [ CUSTONER (]
W O Wil [
CUSTORER [ ] | CusTomER [
] Wil
~CUSTOMER [ cusroumi
Contalner pul/push out required? No (YoaMo) [ A fusl surcharpe and evironmental cost recovery charga, calcutatet] Net Change
Contalner behind gate or enclosura? No (Yea/No) apemmoeofﬂxecmmo(o).wilbolndudodonyourlnvolcn. $
Customer’s Waste Materials does not -mmmubmmFuovEmmmamuchugncanbefwndon
excead an average welght of lhelyard pur website at www,wm.com under billing inquiry. State and Local
. [ 4 icab! will also be added to the Charges.
Eammhmmmummmdaumommmm
anyuryﬂommormhmnmbmdon!horewehbhmw
commodity market conditions. The cherge on this agreament
s the cuirrent feo and market .

Customer will receive a rebate of $40/ton for
customer generated Old Corrugated Card
rates are reduced by 25% or more during

the contents of the Single Stream Compactor- Contents must be inclusive of all
board (OCC). Rebate will be paid on Quarterly basls. If recycling commodity return
the term of this agreement, this rebate can be adjusted or removed.

CUSTOMER DEPOSIT SCHEDULE OF CHARGES”
P.0. NUMBER Conteliier Usage Fee $ 00:00
J0B NUMBER Hauiihg Per Load $05
RECEFT REQUIRED? No (Yes/No) BALTO ACCT# = el ';“' Ton e § 40 REBATE
TAXABLE No (Yes/No) DISPOSAL SITE DL mm,,: Yord i(:‘:;ons

THE UNDERSIGNED INDIVIDUAL SIGNING THIS AGREEMENT ON BEHALF OF CUSTOMER Dieposal Por Load $na

ACKNOWLEDGES THAT HE/SHE HAS READ AND UNDERSTANDS THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF Yotal per Losd $ na

MAGREEIBJTONTHESECONDPAGEWTW"EISHEMS THE AUTHORITY TO SIGN ON

BEHALF OF THE CUSTOMER. Delivery Charge $05

—TERMS: DUE UPON RECEIPT- inactivity Fee — mintmum ¥ of hauts #0of hauts ;
- charged / month { Inactive huut
CUSTOMER Northwest Hospital-Seattle, WA Disposal FacHlity Dig Out Chargs 250
AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE M‘LA‘JM @ $ 757 hr. (30 minuta
‘ alJM Demurrage Wait Timo minimum)

TE Pz ¢Fo | oare | 2-/5-/2 A Ticket Charge $3/ ticket
NAME[PRINT OR TYPE) Bavee Fettuson’ Contalner (Reapof) Charge
COMPANY Waste Management Tdp Charge $05
AUTHORIZED BIGNATURE Remaval Feo $95

- Administrative Feo 0/ imvolce
SALESPERSON Jeff Norton | pate_[ 07017114 Porm RO LSA PNW version02/2008

WMO000259




SERVICE AGREEMENT
NON-HAZARDOUS WASTES

Roll-OfF Service Agreoment
Terms And Conditions

1. SERVICES RENDERED; WASTE MATERIALS. Custamer grants to Compeny the
- exclisive right, and Company shall fumish equipment and services, 1o caliect sad
diapose of and/or recyde all of Cuslomar's Wasta Materials. Cuslomer represents and
warrants that the materials to be collected under this Agreament shell be only “Waste
taterials® a5 defined hereln. For purpases of thia Agreemsnt, "Waste Materlals®
mmdmmmMandRewdaueMabmhmby
Customér or at Customers Sefvice Addracs. -Waste-Materiale-neludes-Bpecia

| 4 ]

g Recyclable Maferiols shallincludo any type of
i bie Mal

matorial that can be recycled seperated or not separated rom

ather Wasta Materials prior to colleciion. Waste Materlals specifically exciudes, and

Ombméragmaanoﬂndeposltorpwnmhdaposumeolecﬁmdimmﬁes.
volatile, comusive, f ey et e

biohamwws.mguldedmdlcdahazardomwasb.bﬂ:wbatmoewmmw.aa
defined by, characterized or listed undar applicable federal, state, or local laws of
regulations, or Special Waeste not approved In wriiing by Campany (cofiectively,
"Excluded Materials™). Tilie toand Kability for Exciuded Malerial shall remain with
Customer at all times. Tita to Waste Materlaia provided by Customer to Company Is
transferred to Company upon Campany’a recelpt or on unleas otharwise
provided in this Agreement ar applicabla law.

2. TERM. The term {"Term") of this Agresment ia thi
Effective Date set forth above (initial Termt), wh

litio

" oK Custom
e
3. SERVICES GUARANTY; CUSTOM TERMINATION. If the to
parform the services dascribed within five business days of is recelpt of 8 weitten
¢ fram Cusgt (See S 10{s}), Customer may tarminate this Agreement
wmnmapgwnernofalanesduem:QhMewmmﬁondam.HCompamkWeases
the Chaiges pay Cust h der for reasans other than as set forth in
Saction 4 below, Customer shall have the right to terminate this Agreement by wiitien
nolice td the Company no later than thirly (30) days afier Company notifies Customer
of such increase In Charges In writing. If Cust 380 notifies Company of s
of this Ag t, such ter fion shall Ya of no force and effect if
Company withdraws ot removes such increase within fifteen (15) days efter Customar
provides Gmely notification of termination. Absent such termination, the increased
la agalnst Customer under this Ag t for

4. CHARGES; PAYMENTS; ADJUSTMENTS, Upon recelpt of an lnvoice, Customer
shell pay for the sarvices andior equipment (inciuding repalr and maltanance)
Mmehedby(:umpanyhaomruwmmmeChwesmmeﬂmpaoe,uumybe
adjunted over the term of this Agreement as noled herein (the *Chargas”). Compary
resarves the right to Increase the Charges payable by Customer dudng the Tem: (a)
faanychangesumodmmawdlmbetweeQMemleqdpmemmd
services provided by Company ta Customer end the agreed upon Equipment/Service
spacifications on the first page, (b) any change In the composition of the Wasts
Materlals or if the average welght per yard of Customer's Waste Materials exceeds the
amount specified on the first page; (c) for any increass In or other modification to s
fuel or e cost y charges; {d) to cover any Increases in disposal
andfor thid party transportation costs; (o) to caver Increased costs dud to

trotiable cir , induding, withcut Bmitation, changes In local, atate or
foderal faws of regulaions, impostllon of taxas, fees or surcharges or acts of God such
as floods, fires, huicanes and natural disasters; and {f) no more often than anrwally
from tha Effective Date (or if specifiod on tha first page, Customer’s Last AP) Date) for
Increases in the Consumer Price Index
Any | in Charges dindl (@ gh (e) ebove may Inciude an
amount for Company’s aperaling or gross profit maigin. Company aiso reservas the
right to charge Customer additianal feas I the following additional services are
provided to Customer: Administrative Fee, Endlosure Chargs, Services on High
Demand Days, Pull/Push Out Services, Container Relocation Fee, or S | Restar|
Fee, In tha event Company adjusts the Charges as provided in this Section 4,
Customar and Company agree thet this Agreamant as 8o adjusted whl continue tn ful
force and effect for the remaining Term.

Any Customer Involca balance not pakd within thirty (30) deys of the date of Invoics is
subject 19 a late fee, and any Customer check relurned for insuffictent funds Is subject
to @ NSF fee, both lo the maximum axten aliowed by applicatle law. In the event that
payment Is not mate when due, Company retaing the right to suspand sefvica unth the
past due batanca Is paid In full. In the event that senvice Is suspended in excess of
fifteen {15) days, Company may tenminata this Agresment for such default and recover
any equipment.

5. CHANGES. Changes In the freq y of collection aefvice, schedule, b
capacity andfor of equipment, may be agreed lo orally, in writing, by payment of
Ihelrwoboorby%’:udbmmdpmcﬁmdmepm I Customer changes its
Service Addresa duxing the Tern, this Agreement shail remain valid and enforceable
with respact to servicea rendered &t Customer’s new setvice location If such location fa
within Company’s seivice area, y

acknowledg
A OTIE difficult b fix or prove, and the

8. EQUIPMENT, ACCESS, All equipment furnished by Company shall remain the
property of Company; , Customer shall have care, custody and control of
ﬂm-equlpnwdandshalbeureswm!bﬂhymdﬂabﬂltyfaallosswdamagabhe
equipmeant and for s while at Cust r's location. C: shall not
uvuioad.movaornlhrhevqulmntanduhaﬂuuﬂnoqﬂmuﬂmlyhrm
Intonded purpose. At the termination of this Agreement, Customer shalt return the
aquipment to Company in the condition In which A wes provided, normel weer end
“tear exoepled. Customer shall provide unobstucted access to the equipment on
the acheduled collection day. Customer shall pay, if charged by Company, an
addlitional fee for any service modifications caused by or resuiing from Customer’s
fallure f0 provide access, Customer wasrents that Customer’s property ia sufficlent
to bear the weight of Company’s.equip. and vehicles and that Compary shall
not be responaible for any demage to the Customer’s property resuling from (he
provision of sarvices.

7. LIQUIDATED DAMAGES. In the event Customer terminates this Agreement
prior to the expiration of the Term for eny reason other than as set forth In Secfion 3,
or in the evant Company tenminates this Agreement for Customer's default,

\ Cummrnmnpayheﬁﬂlwhgﬂqddebddammshaddﬂontoheconww‘i

logal fees; {a) If the remaining iniial Term under this Agreement ks six of more
montha, Customer shall pay s most recent monthly Charges mesitipliad by eix; (b) ¥
the remalning Inltial Term under this Agreement is less than aix months, Customer
sha pay its most recent monthly Charges multiplied by the number of months
temaining In the Tee; (c) K tha remaining Renewal Term under this Agreement is
three or more Guslomer shall pay ifs most recent monthly Charges
muitiplied by three; or (d) i the remaining Renewal Ternm under this Agreement Is
lass than threa months, Customer shafl pay lts most recent monthiy Charges

J b th Renewal Term. C
” mutiplied by the of Inthe Tem

5 that the actual damege to Company In the evedt of faminalion ls
Company I e .

and commensurble with the anticipaled loss Yo Company resulting from such
mmnndlsanagteeduponfeemhnotknposadnsapenany; Customer
shall pay fiquidated darnages of $100 for every Customer waste lire that Is found at
the disposal faclity.

8..INDEMNITY. The Company agrees io indemnify, defend and seve Customer
harmless from and against any and all Bablitty which Cyst may be responsibk
for or pay out 69 a result of bodlly Injurles (including death), property damage, or
anyvblalonuaﬂegedﬂdaﬂonoflaw.bﬂnex‘snlcausedby.anynwmwt
neguaemcnﬂsslonormmmnduclofmemwwansemploym.wmeh
occurs (s} during the coltaction or fransportation of Customor's Waete Materals, or
(b) a3 a result of the dispasal of Customer’s Waste Materlals in & facllly owned by
the Company.or & subsidiary of Wasta ¥ it, Inc., provided that the
Company’s indemnification ot ations wll not apply to occurrences Involving
Excluded Materials.

Cusb agrees to Ind y. defend and save the Company harmiess from and
agalnst any and all fability which the Company may ba responstble for or pay out as
@ result of bodily Injuries (inciuding death), property damage, or any violation or
alieged violation of law to the extent caused by Customer’s brasch of this

A or by any negligent act, L ission or wiliful misconduct of the

'()‘\Tmmorluanpioyaea.ngemor-r“ inthe p of this
Agreement or Customer’s use, operation or p lon of any equipmentt furnished
by the Company.

Neither parly shalt be Kable to the other for consequential, incldental or punitive

dammages arising out of the ppriomnance of this Agreement.
S, ma e T wiste 2
8. RIGHT OF FIRST Customerbiranig'to Company a right of first
mhnsallonmﬁanyoﬂermlaﬂnqtownhsulmﬂarmﬂmprowdedhemmder
which Customer recetves (or intends to make) upon termi of this Ag t
for any reason and Cust shall give Corhpany prompt wiitlen notice of any such
offer and a reasonable opportunity to respond 1o .

10. MISCELLANEQUS. (a) Excopt for the obligation to make payments hereunder,
neither party shall be in default for its falure to p or detay In peifo

caused by events or significant thweats of events heyond R reasonable cantrol,
whether or ot foreseeable, including, but not Bmitad 10, sirikes, labor rouble, tiots,
lmpoeﬁanothmorgwemrﬁlm,ﬂes.mdwormmmo{
God.ammehmbﬂﬂyhobtalneqdpmentmdunuﬂhdedmnyamnbemuwd
from perfc during the of such events. (b) This Agrecment shall
beblndingonandshaﬂlnwelaﬂ\abmsmow\epsrﬂwhemammekmpetﬁva

and agsigns. (c) This Ag p ts the entire agreement

between the partles and supersades any and a¥ other agroement

or oral, thet may exist betwean te parties. (d) This Agreement shaft be constiued
mmmmm«wmmlnmmmmm (e} AR
writlen notification to Company requlred by this Ag shall be by Cerlified
Mall, Retum Recelpt Requested. (f} Any blanks of wfifled or unmaked baxes o
spaces on this irst page shall ba deemed to be inapplicable and not affect the

vaudﬂyofﬂdsweemern(g)umypmvlslmo!mlsMeammhdadmedesm
o fi bie, then such provision shall be from and shal not affoct the
ginder of this A h , the parties shall amend this Agreament o

mveefhd.bmemaxinumemﬂdivvmd,hmammandmmﬂtha
severed provision. m)mmemmmpwmmﬁwyenmmmm

inst Cust h . the C shall be required o pay the Company’s
atlomeys' fees and court costs.

Perm RO LSA PNW version:02/2000
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%@@ CUSTOMER SERVICE AGREEMENT
Sotilone LIBRARY 228€ ** HEALTHCARE =~ ’

2947 - WM Healthcare Solutions of Washington * 8111 1t Ave South * SEATTLE WA 82108

AGREEMENT 5ET FORTH ABOYE AND ATTACHED (WHICH ARE INCORPORATED HEREIN) ANO THAT HE/BHE HAS THE.

THIS.OFFER IS VALID UNTIL: January 1, 2012 EFFECTIVE DATE: January 15, 2012
CONTRACT NUMBER: REASON CODE: NBO New Business Permanent
SALES PERSON: Jeff Norton TERM IN MONTHS 1
Gustomer: Northwest Hospital Billing Name:
b? —Atso-SeeAttachment-Afor-cifoiteloo— Attn: Shawn Rossiter
Service Address: 1550 N 115th Street Biling Address
Chty: Seetls State; WA 715 98133 City: State; Zip:
Phone No.: 206-368-2125 Fax: Phone No.: Fas
Contact = Escalente Contact:
Email juan.esoelanfoinwheog.ong Emall
County: Kng - I ClyUimas? County: In Cly Limiks?
Quantity | Container Wasto Type |Rata(gal/ea)[ Frequency g SUN MON TUE WED THUR FRI SAT
60 31 Red Bag por tariff 1 PerWk £
N 20 43 Red Bag per tariff 1 Per Wk -g N
E 15 30 Incinerable | per tarift-§25 1 Per Wk s E
w g w
. !
Speclal instructions.
Preferred Delivery Date: Quantity: Preferred First P1U
Hours of Operation: )
Mep Coordinates:
Special Notes: Hosphal Pickup near Gero Pgych unit in Sheds
No Pickup before 8 AM- nesr residential
All other chasgos per WUTC Tariff
Dotler Amount
> Cusiomer Dept. Rata Rostriciion Flel Rata Flat Monthly Disposal Rale
3 Po.Numbe Date of increase) On Calf On Call Servics Call
w
9 Acct. Rumber Price Group OSHA OSHA Compliance
E TexCode BIl to Acct # Repl Blo Box |R Sox Gharge
& $IC Code Disposel Sita Reumabls Tub |Repi ¢ Tub Cherge
Q
% Municlpsiity| Promotion Code Minimum Per Stop  {Minkmum Per Stop
Prev. Provider Sales Force # $ 12.00 | Overweight Per Cont. Overwelght Per Contalner
5 Job Number, Parent Number| Emviro Fee vy witt.comfoc
= Fuel Surcharge l
Container Size Maximum Weight limita aflowed
Coriginer Stze Madrm Welah
23 Gallon Box 25Lbs
30 Gation Bax 60Lbs
31 Galton Reisable Tub 6aLbs
43 Gallon Reussbie Tub - eolbe
THIS 16 AN AGREEMENT. EACH NGIVIDUAL AC mrmmmmwumnam«nm:mmmcmmmwm

TO SIGN. ALL DELNERY ANO PICK Uf

AUTHORITY
DATEB ARE SUSJEOT TO CHANGE DEPENDING ON ROUTE 8ERVICE N THE PARTICULAR BERVICENNARKET AREA.

cusmigm a WM HEAL THCARE SOLUTIONS OF WASHINGTON:
A RIZED SIGNA! (V74 eeslm AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE

AL, VSOV, {CHieF Fnaacde
NAWEE, TITLE (PRINT ORTYPE] j OFRCe..  NANE, TITLE (FRINT ORTYPE)

A f2

DATE

DATE
(Please date and Inital If more than one locatlon)

DATE INTIAL

VWMO000261




~ 1.REGULATED MEDICAL WASTE smvmwuuumsm\-.m(lnmm w«mm@mwmwmmmmm
disposal, J d

end treak of #1R dical wasts (or *R

WWMMMM“MMN«WM&NM“M

Mumbdby&mwlhcwavﬁmmmwhwwuoﬂhmm'ﬂwwwwmmhmwhmmgm,hmhw.
oonairiars &

. tbing, blood, bood products, trece omoltierspy wasts, Sesue,

fmedical wosts reguiations or the OSHA Bloodbome Pathogen Stenderd (20 CFR 1940.1030),
memumamhmmuuquu
“Nanconforming

d in 9 course of &l end atedical { or medicel westa a3 -definad by your Blate
mmdwmmwwmwmmmm.m

WWM(l.)wmwmmmmmmh&dewmh“‘ humen cemaing; (2.) waste; () ey
Ested ‘wasta; (4,) thet ara di _wbmuwwmwwhmmmwomm)mmmm

Inoorreciy
mmmmmmmmmm(wwhmmw

labelad andfor segrogated; (8.) any wasle or device g mercury g amaig A

the Company under our disposal ,!')bﬂmmmﬂwwmdbmm(l)mommmeﬁ-Mhudbdnd.hmparhdartuhd
wummhmu-mmwwmmm,mmmr Is Kable lor a8 damag resuling from any Nonconforming Wasle due 1
packing o tha s being coldectsd, tran d, reated, or dispossd by the Company. Fuither Weste Ascep Definitions ace edd; d In he Attached Wasla Aaceplance Protocol,

!.NSPECTION:REJEC“ONOFWASTE.WD&MI!WMMWMWW.&MmW\CMlﬂMmMMwhfwbﬁwmwhdm
Wasle d

y Q1 . ¥C s Waste Material Is Nonconforming Wasts,
‘o remove and disposs of the N 19 Waels at Cu s sole expense, C

wwmqhmmmmmwwwmnhcmmwmh
shall In

Cus-iomer
hoid hanniess (in With Secfon 6) and pey of relmburso Company for

mmdmdmmmnmmn-mﬂdwmu&aﬁm«lm
In costs of Inspaction,”

1 0-end analysis.

3.COMPANY WARRANTIES, Gompary hereby reprasants and war-venis et {s) Compeny wit

wdnlvoqoiNmﬂmﬂmthquMnhcmWorwmmhww

{he Wasta Material In a eafe and workmaniia mannar in full compilence with el vaid
or

mansge
-u-ppluunmru,mummlhm.mmmmww;mmhnmwmmmmnmuwmmmu,m
el and mautat

vequired by vald end taws,

Y to allow;the faclity to
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EXHIBIT C

From: Jeremy Wyatt [Jeremy_Wyatt@Valleymed.org]
<ent: Friday, May 11, 2012 3:57 PM

.0: Norton, Jeffrey

Subject: RE: Costs follow up

Let me look at what we have and who it is with.

Jeremy C. Wyatt, Cert. A.T. -
Supervisor

Perioperative Services
425-228-3440 ext. 6399 / 4457
206-715-5108 Cell
206-969-1656 Pager
425-656-5390 Fax

From: Norton, Jeffrey [mailto:jnorton1@wm.com]
Sent: Friday, May 11, 2012 3:51 PM

To: Jeremy Wyatt

Subject: RE: Costs follow up

Our tariff pricing which is anywhere from .25-.36 per gallon for most hospitals.....If you can tell me how many medical waste
containers you get picked up at each pickup, | can tell you how much it would be.

Sincerely,

Jeff Norton

Waste Management Healthcare Solutions
Account Development Manager

Pacific Northwest-WA/OR/ID/AK

cell: 360.913.4877 fax: 877 900 1814

From: Jeremy Wyatt [mailto:Jeremy Wyatt@Valleymed.ora]
Sent: Friday, May 11, 2012 3:00 PM

To: Norton, Jeffrey

Subject: RE: Costs follow up

Can you expand on what our medical waste would be?

Jeremy C. Wyaltt, Cert. A.T.
Supervisor
Perioperative Services
425-228-3440 ext. 6399 / 4457
206-715-5108 Cell

06-969-1656 Pager
425-656-5390 Fax
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“rom: Norton, Jeffrey [mailto:jnorton1@wm.com]
sent: Friday, May 11, 2012 2:42 PM

To: Jeremy Wyatt

Subject: Costs follow up

Hello Jeremy...

Jesse is on vacation....| tracked down some of your costs....| don’t have the disposal rate for the trash other than the haul fee
of $190.79

Your recycle is $155 haul fee and $70/ton processing.
I'think | can get your fees down for recycling.....Let me see what I can do.

If we can also service you for medical waste {not your sharps service...the remainder of your medical waste) we can reduce
your recycling to $120 haul fee and $15/ton processing. This is similar to what we did for Northwest Hospital.

Sincerely,

Jeff Norton
Waste Management Healthcare Solutions
ccount Development Manager
Northwest Region: WA/OR/ID/Northern CA/NV/AK
cell: 360.913.4877 fax: 877 900 1814

Providing our customers with economic and environmental sustainability

Privilege or confidential information may be contained in this message. This information is meant only for the use of the
intended recipients. If you are not the intended recipient, or if the message has been addressed to you in error, do not read,
disclose, reproduce, distribute, disseminate or otherwise use this transmission. Instead, please notify the sender by reply email,
and then destroy all copies of the message and any attachments

Waste Management recycles enough paper every year to save 41 million trees. Please recycle any
printed emails.

DISCLAIMER:

This message is confidential, intended only for the named recipient(s)

and may contain information that is privileged or exempt from disclosure

under applicable law. If you are not the intended recipient(s), you are
stified that the dissemination, distribution or copying of this

information is strictly prohibited. If you received this message in
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EXHIBIT D

CYSTOMER SERVICE AGREEMENT
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Anachient A.
Shams Rewdlnglicoﬁnltylomdon Ust.
For s Eemem b tween Wasta Managemem [8ecton Dldanson/F‘eace Health

Hetchikan General Hospital Ketchikan AK
Cottage Grove Hospital CoftageGrove. OR  Sharps Risychng
Oregon State Hospital {Portiarid) - ~Specialty Ceipy Porfland OR  ShupsRecycheg
Peace Harbor Hospital Florence OR  shamRocyclng:
West Valley Hospital Datles R
Coulee Medical Genter, GrandCoulee WA StupeRecycing
Eastem State Hospital Medical:Lake WA StatpsRecyclief.
Prosser Momorial Hospitat Progser: WA Skarps Recyehng
Pul lﬁan Reglonal Hospital Pullman WA, S Recycling
ncy Vi Quincy WA, Shans acycliag
! "Moses Lake WA.  Sharps Rotyeliog
n Suirgical Center, LLC Kirktand: WA St Recyciiig
Nolthwost Kidney Center Seattle WA SteqesRecycing
Peacelealth Medical Group » PHOR Eugene OR  Shape Rocyeling
Puget Sound Kidney Genter ‘Everutt WA Shitss Racyaling
Sacred Heart Home Infission Eugene OR  ShapsRecyciog
Tri:Chty Regional Surgery Gentor Rictiand WA Shaips Recytiing
Western State Hospitat “Tacona WA, ShapsRacycling
‘Coluimbia Basin Hospital Ephrata WA Sharps Reeydling
Odessa Memorial-Hospital Odessa WA ShupsRecycing
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East Adams Rural Haspifal - _Fitzville WA Shaps Recyciing
Ferry County Memonial Hospital Republic " WA Shiips Racydiag”
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EXHIBIT E

DATA REQUEST NO. 18:

Describe any Services You offer involving the collection and transportation of sharps or sharps
waste, including but not limited to any Service Relating to the BD ecoFinity Life Cycle Solution
sharps program. Your answer must include, without limitation:

Response: Waste Management objects that this Data Request is not reasonably calculated to lead
to the discovery of admissible evidence, is overly broad and unduly burdensome and seeks
Waste Management’s trade secrets and confidential business information. Without waiving
these objections, Waste Management generally describes below the recycling services it has
offered since the filing of its biomedical waste tariff.

(a) A statement characterizing Your Service either as involving the collection and
transportation of recyclable materials unregulated by the WUTC or as involving the collection
and transportation of Biomedical Waste regulated by the WUTC;

. Response: Collection services offer to BD ecoFinity customers are performed in the same

manner as medical waste customers with the exception of the uniquely labeled tubs filled with
sharps containers. Once these tubs are received at the Seattle processing plant, the tubs are
loaded onto trailers and transported to Vernon, California for processing. Waste Management .
performs this as a commercial recycling collection service.

(b) A description of the material collected and transported;

‘Response: Tubs ﬁlled with sharps and sharps containers.

(c) - A description of the sharps containers used, including all spec1ﬁcat10ns, their
manufacturers, and all manufacturer’s information;

Response: Becton, Dickinson and Company sharps containers of various sizes.

(d) A description of all treatment and disposal methods employed for the material,
including sharps containers;

Response: Sharps and sharps containers are either disposed of at a landfill or processed for
recycling.

(¢) If You contend that any portion of the sharps, sharps waste or sharps containers are
recycled, a description of the material recycled, the methods used in such recycling, the

percentage of the sharps or sharps containers that is recycled, and the methods used in trackmg,
calculating, and/or.documenting the amounts recycled;

Response: Tubs are transported to Waste Management’s facility at Vernon, California, and
processed in a Red Bag Solutions (RBS) hardware/software system designed to safely,

PROTESTANT STERICYCLE OF WASHINGTON,

INC.’S FIRST DATA REQUESTS TO APPLICANT
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efficiently, and effectively sterilize and grind medical waste. By exposing infectious medical
waste to superheated water and steam (272°F / 133°C) and simultaneously employing a
proprietary cutting system, the RBS renders infectious medical waste non-infectious, non-
hazardous, and non-recognizable. Once processed through the RBS, the non-infectious medical
waste is sent to Talco Plastics in Corona, California where the non-infectious ground sharps are
processed and the metals and plastics separated. The recovered plastics are pelletized at Talco
and sent to BD to be manufactured into BD Recykleen Products.’

(D) The rates You charge for any such Services; and

Response: Waste Management objects to this Data Request as being prohibited by Order 01 4 8,
Order 03 § 24, and Order 04 10. Waste Management further objects that this Data Request is
not reasonably calculated to lead to the discovery of admissible evidence, is overly broad, unduly
burdensome, and secks Waste Management’s trade secrets and confidential business information.

(2) The Washington State generators of Biomedical Waste to whom you provide any
such Services. :

Response: Waste Management objects to this Data Request as being prohibited by Order 01 { 8,
Order 03 124, and Order 04 § 10. Waste Management further objects that this Data Request is
not reasonably calculated to lead to the discovery of admissible evidence, is overly broad, unduly
burdensome, and secks Waste Managément’s trade secrets and confidential business information.

Produce copies of all contracts, agreements, purchase orders, invoices, Communications, or other

Documents describing or otherwise Related to any Servicés Identified in response to this Data
Request No. 18.

Response: Subject to, and without waiving, the above-stated objections, Waste Management will
produce documents at a-mutually agreeable time.

DATA REQUEST No. 19:

- Describe Your existing Biomedical Waste operations in Washington, including collection,
transportation, treatment, and disposal, and provide an itemized description of all personnel,
vehicles, transportation equipment, transportation yards, transportation routes, storage facilities,
transfer facilities, treatment facilities, disposal facilities and other facilities or equipment
currently used in providing such Services, and Describe all changes to existing operations,
including personnel, vehicles, transportation equipment, transportation yards, transportation
routes, storage facilities, transfer facilities, treatment facilities, disposal facilities and other
facilities or equipment You intend to implement to provide Biomedical Waste Services in the
additional territory covered by the Application. '

Response: Waste Management objects to. this Data Request as being prohibited by Order 01 8,
Order 03 4 24, and Order 04 § 10. Waste Management further objects that this Data Request is

PROTESTANT STERICYCLE OF WASHINGTON,
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DATA REQUEST NO, 14:

Identify and Describe (a) each vehicle and any other transportation equipment You, Your
Affiliates, or any independent contractor or other third party currently use in providing
Biomedical Waste Services to Washington State customers and (b) any additional vehicles and

-other transportation equipment you intend to use in providing such Services if your Application
is granted. Include in Your response a description of all features, design elements or
modifications to such vehicles or equipment made for the purpose of preparing them for use to
store or transport Biomedical Waste, DOT numbers, registration numbers, licensing information,
signage, and vehicle markings, and state whether You own, lease, or rent the vehicle or other
equipment and, if leased or rented, the name and address of the title holder.

Supplemental Response: A description of Waste Management’s vehicles is produced herewith.
Waste Management marks its vehicles in compliance with US DOT regulations. Jeff Norton and
Jeff Daub have knowledge regarding this response.

DATA REQUEST NO. 18:

Describe any Services You offer involving the collection and transportation of sharps or sharps
waste, including but not limited to any Service Relating to the BD ecoF inity Life Cycle Solution
sharps program. Your answer must include, without limitation:

(a) A statement characterizing Your Service either as involving the collection and
transportation of recyclable materials unregulated by the WUTC or as involving the collection
and transportation of Biomedical Waste regulated by the WUTC;

(b) A description of the material collected and transported;

(¢) A description of the sharps containers used, including all specifications, their
manufacturers, and all manufacturer’s information;

(d) A description of all treatment and disposal methods employed for the material,
including sharps containers; :

(e) If You contend that any portion of the sharps, sharps waste or sharps containers are
- recycled, a description of the material recycled, the methods used in such recycling, the
percentage of the sharps or sharps containers that is recycled, and the methods used in tracking,
calculating, and/or documenting the amounts recycled;

(f) The rates You charge for any such Servicesi and

(g) The Washington State generators of Biomedical Waste to whom you provide any
such Services. :

PROTESTANT STERICYCLE OF WASHINGTON,
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Produce copies of all contracts, agreements, purchase orders, invoices, Communications, or other

Documents describing or otherwise Related to any Services Identified in response to this Data
Request No. 18. -

Supplemental Response: Waste Management autoclaves the majority of sharps waste
collected. Approved sharps containers are deposited into Waste Management’s lined, reusable
tubs and are transported to the Seattle processing plant for autoclaving. The sterilized sharps are
then transported to Columbia Ridge or Greater Wenatchee Landfill for final disposal. BD
ecoFinity is a sharps recycling program rolled out to hospitals in 2011 by Waste Management
and Becton Dickenson. Waste Management collects full sharps containers weekly from St.
Joseph Medical Center in Bellingham. The contract with St. Joseph Medical Center is produced
herewith. The sharps containers are delivered to the Seattle processing facility and are loaded to
1-yard Gaylord’s, placed on a 53’ trailer and transported to Vernon, California for processing in
a Red Bag Solutions machine. The sterilized, washed and shredded sharps containers and their
contents are then sent to Talco Corporation where the material is separated utilizing float/sink
technology. The plastics recovered in this process are pelletized and used in the remanufacturing
of sharps containers. In May and June 2012, recycled sharps and sharps containers yiclded
between 17% and 28% of the recycled product. Waste Management accepts all approved sharps
and sharps containers under both its BD ecoFinity program and its regulated biomedical waste
program. Waste Management charges competitive market rates for its BD ecoFinity program
and tariff rates for its regulated biomedical waste program. Jeff Daub, Jeff Norton and Tim
Tucker have knowledge regarding this response. ‘

DATA REQUEST NO. 20:

Describe each offer, solicitation, meeting, negotiation, or other Communication, and any
agreement, contract, or other understanding reached or in effect, within the past 24 months
Related to (1) Your Biomedical Waste Services, (2) Your Services Related to the collection,
transportation or recycling of recyclable materials, and (3) Your rates or charges for any of such
Services, with or involving any representative of each of the following:

(a) Skagit Valley Hospital (Mt. Vernon)

(b) Northwest Hospital (Seattle)

(¢) St.Joseph’s Hospital (Bellingham)

(d) Sacred Heart Hospital (Spokane)

(¢) Holy Family Hospital (Spokane)

(f) Pathology Associates Medical Laboratories.

Produce all Communications, notes, reports, contracts, agreements, or other Documents Related
to any offer, solicitation, meeting, negotiation, or other Communication, or any agreement,
contract or understanding referenced in this Data Request No. 20.

Supplemental Response: The contracts with these entities along with the one email exchange
which is responsive are produced herewith. Waste Management does not perform recycling
~ services for Sacred Heart Medical Center, Holy Family Hospital, or Pathology Associates
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Medical Laboratories. Prior to providing biomedical waste services to Skagit Valley Hospital,
Waste Management charged the hospital $600/month for recycling. Currently, Waste
Management charges the competitive rate of $1,800/month for increased recycling at Skagit
Valley Hospital. Prior to providing biomedical waste services to Northwest Hospital, Waste
Management charged the hospital $132 per haul for recycling. Currently, Waste Management
charges the hospital the competitive rate of $95 per haul for recycling with a $40/ton refund
based on the market commodity price obtained by Waste Management for the recycled material.
Waste Management does not provide regulated biomedical waste services to St. Joseph Medical
Center and does not provide recycling services to Sacred Heart Hospital, Holy Family Hospital
or PAML. Jeff Norton, Jeff Daub, Mike Charles, Rodger Lycan, Rob Spohn, Rose Hong, and
Bill Montgomery have knowledge regarding this response.

DATA REQUEST NO. 22;

Describe each offer, solicitation, meeting, negotiation, or other Communication involving Jeff
Norton and (i) any of Your other employees, agents, contractors or representatives, or (i) the
representative(s) of any hospital, healthcare facility, medical laboratory or other biomedical
Wwaste generator Related to the collection, transportation or recycling of recyclable materials,
Your rates or charges for any such Services or any contract, agreement or understanding Related
to such Services within the past 24 months.

Produce all Communications, notes, reports, contracts, agreements, or other Documents Related
to any offer, solicitation, meeting, negotiation, or other Communication, or any contract,
agreement or understanding referenced in this Data Request No. 22.

Supplemental Response: Waste Management has offered recycling services to the following
biomedical waste generators: Northwest Hospital, Virginia Mason, Skagit Valley Hospital, St.
Joseph Medical Center, Evergreen Hospital, Seattle Genetics, Swedish Medical Center,
PeaceHealth, Bayer Healthcare, and Sacred Heart Medical Center. In each case, Waste
Management has made a competitive bid in line with the local market. Because hospitals
provide a wide range (and usually large volumes) of commodities, this market is very
competitive. In the case of Northwest Hospital and Virginia Mason, the pricing was provided to
Waste Management by the hospitals. Waste Management has a state-of-the-art recycling facility
in Woodinville and offers facilities competitive options. Responsive documents are produced
herewith. Jeff Norton, Mike Jefferies, Kelly Macy, Rob Spohn, Ray Moore, Bill Montgomery,
Mike Smith, Juan Escalante, Rose Hong, Andy Flodin, James Owen, David Wick, and Mike
Charles have knowledge regarding this response.

DATA REQUEST NO. 24:

Describe any contention by You that there is a need for Your Biomedical Waste Services in the
territory covered by Your application and the factual basis for each such contention. Your
complete answer must include, but not be limited to:
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